
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a 

Seilwaith 
Lleoliad: 

Fideogynhadledd drwy Zoom  

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 11 Mai 2023 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30)  

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (09.30-14.30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

 

2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 4 

(09.30-10.40) (Tudalennau 1 - 55)  

Chris Ashley, Arweinydd Polisi, Amgylchedd a Cherbydau - Y Gymdeithas 

Cludo ar y Ffyrdd (RHA)  

Christine Boston, Cyfarwyddwr - Sustrans Cymru  

Joshua James, Rheolwr Materion Cyhoeddus - Living Streets  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

Papur - Y Gymdeithas Cludo ar y Ffyrdd (RHA) (Saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Sustrans Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Living Streets (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl (10.40-10.50)  

 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

3 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 5 

(10.50-11.50) (Tudalennau 56 - 62)  

Stephen Turner, Cyn-Gadeirydd Diwethaf – Sefydliad Acwsteg 

Peter Rogers, Cadeirydd - Grŵp Cysylltiadau Cyhoeddus a Seneddol y 

Sefydliad Acwsteg  

Rosie Pitt, Cadeirydd - Cangen Cymru y Sefydliad Acwsteg  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - Sefydliad Acwsteg (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl i ginio (11.50-12.20)  

 

4 Cynaliadwyedd Gwasanaethau Bysiau Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 

gyda gweithredwyr bysiau 

(12.20-13.20) (Tudalennau 63 - 75)  

Scott Pearson, Cadeirydd - Cymdeithas Coetsus a Bysiau Cymru (CABAC) 

Aaron Hill, Cyfarwyddwr - Cydffederasiwn Cludiant Teithwyr (CPT) Cymru   

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff ymchwil - Cynaliadwyedd Gwasanaethau Bysiau Cymru 

 

Egwyl (13.20-13.30)  

 

5 Cynaliadwyedd Gwasanaethau Bysiau Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 

gyda llywodraeth leol 

(13.30-14.30)   

Y Cynghorydd Andrew Morgan, Arweinydd a Llefarydd ar Newid Hinsawdd - 

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru  

Y Cynghorydd Keith Henson, Cadeirydd Grŵp Trafnidiaeth Canolbarth Cymru 

– Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru  



 

 

Y Cynghorydd David Bithell, Cadeirydd Grŵp Trafnidiaeth Gogledd Cymru – 

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru  

Y Cynghorydd Lis Burnett, Llefarydd Materion Gwledig – Cymdeithas 

Llywodraeth Leol Cymru  

 

6 Papurau i'w nodi 

(14.30)   

 

6.1 Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 76 - 80)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Nodyn briffio gan Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn dilyn eu sesiwn graffu flynyddol 

gyda'r Pwyllgor ar 9 Chwefror 2023 

6.2 Datgarboneiddio’r diwydiant dur yn ne Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 81 - 82)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth Tata Steel UK at y Cadeirydd yn dilyn eu sesiwn dystiolaeth 

yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 26 Ebrill 2023 (Saesneg yn unig) 

6.3 Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd 

 (Tudalen 83)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd at y Cadeirydd mewn 

perthynas â’r Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd 

 

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (vi) a (ix) i benderfynu 

gwahardd y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw 

(14.30)   

 

Cyfarfod preifat (14.30-15.00)  

 



 

 

8 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - trafod y 

dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law o dan eitemau 2 a 3 

 

9 Cynaliadwyedd Gwasanaethau Bysiau Cymru - trafod y dystiolaeth 

a ddaeth i law o dan eitemau 4 a 5 

   

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



AQS32 Road Haulage Association (RHA) 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith | Climate Change, Environment, and 

Infrastructure Committee 

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) | The Environment (Air Quality and 

Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

Ymateb gan Y Gymdeithas Cludo ar y Ffyrdd | Evidence from Road Haulage Association (RHA)  

General principles 

What are your views on the general principles of the Bill, and is there a need for legislation to 

deliver the stated policy intention? 

The RHA welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) 

(Wales) Bill. We are a trade body representing over 8,500 hauliers across the United Kingdom, with a 

growing coach membership of 89 members. 85% of our membership is made up of small businesses, 

whom we define as operating less than 20 vehicles. Our members operate around 250,000 HGVs 

(half of the UK fleet) out of 10,000 operating centres and range from a single-truck company to 

those with thousands of vehicles.  

Our starting position is that we understand the harmful impacts caused by poor air quality and 

committed 

to investing in technologies that improve air quality that are sustainable, proportionate and fair. We 

strongly support the aim to decarbonise commercial vehicles, and believe that the technological 

innovations implemented will substantially reduce harmful emissions from commercial transport 

which, in turn, will benefit air quality. 

From this starting point and with one exception (use of Clean Air Zones), we give qualified support to 

the general principles underpinning the Bill. The issue is not the “what; it is “how” air quality targets 

set by Welsh authorities are achieved. 

We are clear that “sustainability” encompasses economic well-being as well social and 

environmental well-being. We regret however that, based on our engagement with some English 

authorities, economic well-being is often overlooked when environmental targets are considered. It 

is vital therefore that economic well-being is given equal consideration, and Welsh authorities are 

uniquely positioned to apply good practice based on learnings elsewhere. 

With this in mind, we have three further starting points: 

- 89% of all goods in the United Kingdom are transported by road freight; 

- the transportation of goods is a legitimate economic function that serves the social well-

being of the public; 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


- the needs of small businesses, whom we predominantly represent and who can not easily 

afford expensive new technologies, must be recognised and supported throughout any initiative to 

improve environmental well-being. 

Achieving improved air quality outcomes therefore requires strong collaborative working across 

many stakeholders with decisions based on evidence, with negative economic impacts to small 

businesses recognised and avoided. 

This said, we have very significant concerns over the proposed use of Clean Air Zones by the Welsh 

Government. The CAZ experience in England has not been a happy one – over-zealous, ill-evidenced 

and poorly thought-through CAZ schemes have proved highly damaging to small businesses. Within 

Wales, we are particularly concerned over the scope of CAZ being applied to trunk roads. This brings 

two significant risks – that the vehicle market can not supply the required vehicles that businesses 

need to function; that “uncompliant vehicles” will be displaced on to local roads. We expand on 

these comments under question 17. 

We offer no comment on the need for legislation to deliver the state policy intention. What we look 

for is that collaborative working which takes account of our points set out above. 

What are your views on the Bill’s provisions (set out according to sections 

below), in particular are they workable and will they deliver the stated policy 

intention? 

National air quality targets (sections 1 to 7) 

We support the principle that the Welsh Ministers should have powers to set national air quality 

targets – however, such targets must be realistic, achievable and sustainable. As stated in question 

10, the issue is not the “what”; it is “how” air quality targets are achieved.  

We note that, in considering what targets to set, the Welsh Government is guided by the latest WHO 

air quality guidelines published in 2021. These are stringent targets – however, we are reassured 

that the WHO also qualifies its guidelines as follows: 

“While achievement of the AQG levels should be the ultimate goal of actions to implement the 

guidelines, this might be a difficult task for many countries and regions struggling with high air 

pollution levels. Therefore, gradual progress in improving air quality, marked by the achievement of 

interim targets, should be considered a critical indicator of improving health conditions for 

populations.” (Source: WHO Air Quality Guidelines – Executive Summary, 2021, p8 

We therefore support an approach where, within the spirit articulated by the WHO, an evidenced-

based pathway with interim targets is developed to reduce air pollution over time. In this way, small 

businesses can be assured that their needs are supported. 

Promoting awareness about air pollution (section 8) 

We support the need to promote awareness about air pollution. Our experience is that, for the lay 

person, it is difficult to understand and verify independently the extent of air pollution. 

To illustrate, we comment that the “Air UK” website must be made much more user-friendly. 

Frequently, it shows whole swathes of the UK in green which, at face value, would indicate that air 

pollution is not a problem. 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



Having clear and easy-to-understand air pollution data will help promote awareness about air 

pollution. It also informs a transparent evidence-base on which agreed actions to tackle air pollution 

can then be taken forward. 

 

National air quality strategy (sections 9 to 11) 

We support the principle that the Welsh Ministers should have powers to set national air quality 

targets – however, such targets must be realistic, achievable and sustainable. As stated in question 

10, the issue is not the “what”; it is “how” air quality targets are achieved.  

We note that, in considering what targets to set, the Welsh Government is guided by the latest WHO 

air quality guidelines published in 2021. These are stringent targets – however, we are reassured 

that the WHO also qualifies its guidelines as follows: 

“While achievement of the AQG levels should be the ultimate goal of actions to implement the 

guidelines, this might be a difficult task for many countries and regions struggling with high air 

pollution levels. Therefore, gradual progress in improving air quality, marked by the achievement of 

interim targets, should be considered a critical indicator of improving health conditions for 

populations.” (Source: WHO Air Quality Guidelines – Executive Summary, 2021, p8 

We therefore support an approach where, within the spirit articulated by the WHO, an evidenced-

based pathway with interim targets is developed to reduce air pollution over time. In this way, small 

businesses can be assured that their needs are supported. 

Air quality regulations (section 12) 

We support any move to improve the consultation process with stakeholders affected by air quality 

legislation. We ask that the RHA is consulted by default. 

Local air quality management (sections 13 to 15) 

We give qualified support to the proposed measures to the LAQM framework. We understand the 

need to improve its effectiveness; however, any “projected compliance date” must be realistic, 

achievable and sustainable and based on firm evidence. 

Please see our answer to questions 10 and 11 for our reasoning. 

Smoke control (sections 16 to 18) 

We have no comment to make on this section. 

Vehicle emissions (sections 19 to 21) 

We have very significant concerns over the proposal to extend the scope of Clean Air Zones to cover 

trunk roads within Wales. It overlooks the national nature of haulage and coach operations, and how 

these operators replace their vehicles with negative economic impacts for small businesses. It will 

also cause “uncompliant” vehicles to be displaced onto local roads – this causes longer journeys with 

more emissions and consequences for the rigorously enforced drivers hours. A re-think is needed. 

As set out in question 1, we observe that the CAZ experience in England and, within London, the 

expansion of the Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ) has been controversial. We are calling for English 

policy makers to learn lessons and urge Welsh Ministers to avoid making the same mistakes. 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



In simple terms, CAZ policies in England, designed to reduce NOx pollution quickly, detrimentally 

squeezed small businesses. This was due to the vehicle market not being able to supply sufficient 

vehicles to meet the required compliance regulation (in this instance, Euro VI). The consequences 

has caused price inflation, asset devaluation and market distortions – this is anti-small business due 

to their lack of buying power and negative impact to asset values (ie. vehicles) on their balance 

sheet. 

For reference, we estimate that hauliers invested an additional £2.2bn to acquire the required “Euro 

VI” vehicles, yet saw £1.2bn wiped prematurely from non-compliant Euro V vehicles. This hurt those 

least able to adapt – particularly small businesses. This translated into a reality where there was not 

enough Euro VI trucks in the second-hand market that smaller firms on low profit margins rely on to 

replenish their fleets.  

Compounded by the collapse in the market value of their older, ‘non-compliant’ Euro V trucks and 

supply-chain delays in receiving new trucks, many operators struggled to keep up. This became a 

vicious circle for many small businesses when faced with up to £100 daily charges to enter CAZs – 

few can withstand that kind of hit for too long. Understanding the impact to asset values is therefore 

vital as lifespan residual values underpin a transport operator’s ability to invest in the environment. 

We further comment that a Clean Air Zone depends on three criteria to operate – geographic size, 

required “compliance” standard, level of financial penalty. We observe that both the Manchester 

Clean Air Zone and the London ULEZ expansion are controversial because the geographic areas of 

both are too big for the compliance regulation set; consequently, the vehicle market can not supply 

the required number of compliant vehicles. 

We are pleased that the Mayor of Greater Manchester has listened to this feedback, and is now 

taking corrective action to put in place a CAZ that supports small businesses – we understand a 

significantly-smaller CAZ area is now being considered. Our concern over applying the CAZ concept 

to trunk roads within Wales is two-fold: 

- similar to Manchester’s original CAZ plans and London, the geographic area will be too big 

for the compliance standard set; 

- “uncompliant” vehicles will be displaced on to local roads. 

Instead, we advocate greater investment in vehicle and fuel standards to drive down pollution plus a 

clear understanding of how industry phases-in new and cleaner vehicles via natural vehicle 

replacement cycles. This brings three benefits - the continuous reduction in harmful emissions, zero 

cost to the taxpayer with the need for expensive scrappage schemes removed, and a framework that 

allows our vital SME businesses to participate. This approach has enabled hauliers to substantially 

reduce NOx pollution from their fleet by 75% since 2013. 

National soundscapes strategy (sections 22 and 23) 

We give qualified support for the need for a national soundscapes strategy. We understand the need 

to reduce noise pollution; however, any such strategy must take account of the ability of technology 

to reduce noise from commercial vehicles and how such noise is phased-out. 

Strategic noise map and noise action plans (sections 24) 

Please see our answer to question 18. 

General provisions (sections 25 to 28); 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



We offer no comments on this section. 

What are the potential barriers to the implementation of the Bill’s provisions and how does 

the Bill take account of them? 

We reiterate our concern about the proposed use of Clean Air Zones within Wales – the potential 

barrier being the vehicle market’s ability to supply the required compliant vehicles. 

We urge all policymakers to learn lessons from the English Clean Air Zone experience to understand 

why the vehicle market could not supply the required compliant vehicles and the damaging 

commercial consequences this caused for small businesses. 

How appropriate are the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate 

legislation (as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? 

We expect normal scrutiny processes to apply whenever subordinate legislation is proposed, and we 

ask that the RHA is fully consulted on such occasions. 

Are any unintended consequences likely to arise from the Bill? 

In addition to our concerns on the proposed use of CAZ within Wales., we comment that any 

initiative that lengthens the time taken to complete journeys impacts on the rigorously-enforced 

drivers hours. Whilst operators can take account of these increased journey times when scheduling 

their fleets, the impact is that an additional driver per vehicle may be needed. This has two further 

consequences: 

1) there is currently an HGV and coach driver shortage. The unnecessary double-crewing of 

vehicles means that drivers are not available to service other customers, which in turn has knock on 

impact on overall economic productivity; 

2) adding drivers to a vehicle increases costs which, in low-margin sectors such as haulage and 

coach, get passed on to the consumer. 

In addition, where it is not possible to have an additional driver, the existing driver will legally need 

to stop when his permitted driving time expires for a mandatory rest break. This means parking 

facilities for HGVs and coaches are needed. However, there is an estimated shortage of 11,000 HGV 

parking spaces across the UK – this must be addressed 

What are your views on the Welsh Government’s assessment of the financial implications of 

the Bill as set out in Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum? 

Are there any other issues that you would like to raise about the Bill and the accompanying 

Explanatory Memorandum or any related matters? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

  

AQS36 Sustrans Cymru 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith | Climate Change, 
Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) | The Environment 
(Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

Ymateb gan Sustrans Cymru | Evidence from Sustrans Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 38

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 
1. What are your views on the general principles of the Bill, and is there a need for legislation 
to deliver the stated policy intention? 

 
 

Sustrans Cymru supports the general principles of the Bill and the need to legislate. 
 

Everyone in Wales has the same right to breathe clean, healthy air. Breathing in polluted 
air is known to increase the likelihood for individuals to develop health concerns, and to 
reduce life expectancy. There is also consensus that the more metrically deprived you are, 
the more likely you are to live in an area with poor air quality. Breathing in polluted air is a 
significant issue of public health and social justice that we cannot afford to ignore. 

 
One of the main causes of air pollution, particularly within our cities, is transport. Sustrans 
shares the Welsh Government’s policy objective of the need to achieve Net Zero. The role 
of transport, as well as its impact on people and places is pivotal. Transport produced 27% 
of the UK’s total emissions in 2019. Of this, the majority (91%) came from road transport 
vehicles. This needs to be addressed urgently. 

 
We need to have a plan in place not just to reduce pollution caused by the transport 
sector, but also to create a fairer society by making affordable active travel options 
accessible to everyone. We know that by doing this, we can improve health and wellbeing, 
increase social connection and improve the environment. 

 
As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and have submitted a comprehensive joint response. This 
individual response supplements that by adding evidence relating to our primary area of 
interest which is Transport. 

 
 

2. What are your views on the Bill’s provisions (set out according to sections below), in 
particular are they workable and will they deliver the stated policy intention? 

 
2.i) National air quality targets (sections 1 to 7) 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and support our joint response to this part of the 
consultation, as follows: 

 
In sections 1-7 the Bill provides Welsh Ministers with new powers to set, review and 
monitor targets for different pollutants. Section 1 gives Ministers wide scope to set targets 
on any pollutant at any time in the future through regulations, whilst section 2 gives a 
specific requirement to set target(s) on PM2.5. 

 
The health and environmental impact of different pollutants 

 
In the 2020 Clean Air Plan - Healthy Air, Healthy Wales the Welsh Government committed 
to focussing on a wide range of pollutants, including nitrogen dioxide (NO2), nitrogen 
oxides (NOx), particulate matter (PM2.5/PM10), ozone (03), sulphur dioxide (SO2) and 
benzo[a]pyrene (B[a]P). These were all highlighted as priorities where action would be 
needed to reduce levels. The World Health Organization have published new guidelines 
for not only particulate matter, but NO2 and O3 as well. 

 
Particulate matter 

 
Particulate matter consists of fine particles that, once in the air, are harmful to human 
health. They can be classified as either particles with a diameter of less than 10 
micrometres (PM10) or even smaller, as PM2.5 (particles with a diameter of less than 2.5 
micrometers). PM2.5 is more harmful as it can penetrate deeper into the lungs and enter 
the bloodstream, causing blood vessel walls to narrow and harden over time, increasing 
blood pressure and strain to your heart, even causing blood clotting. Particulate matter 
can cause more long-term damage to the health of people with existing heart and lung 
conditions, elderly people, pregnant women and their unborn children, and the very 
young. The majority of air pollution early deaths are linked to particulate matter pollution. 
Emissions of black soot from incomplete combustion are associated with effects on 
climate change. The top sources of PM2.5 are domestic wood and coal burning (38%), 
industrial combustion (16%), road transport (exhaust emissions and tyre/brake wear) (12%) 
and use of solvents and industrial processes (13%). Particulate matter can come from 
natural sources such as wind-blown dust, sea salt, pollen and soil particles. It can travel 
long distances meaning that pollution from England and even parts of northern Europe 
can impact on levels in Wales. 

 
WHO states that there is no threshold below which PM2.5 does not damage health (WHO 
Guidelines for Indoor Air Quality. World Health Organization. 2014. https://rb.gy/8t50xc). At 
present the law on PM2.5 pollution in Wales says annual average concentrations cannot 
exceed 25μg/m3 (micrograms per cubic metre of air), an incredibly high level of air 
pollution that thankfully hasn’t been exceeded. Pre-2021 the WHO guideline was 10 
μg/m3, and analysing 2019 air pollution data, Asthma + Lung UK Cymru was able to 
estimate that 1.9% care homes, 0.9% hospitals, 3.3% GPs and 1% schools were in areas 
above the limit. However, the new 2021 WHO guidelines have reduced the recommended 
PM2.5 limit to 5 μg/m due to dangers of these pollutants. Analysing the 2019 data again 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



100% of Welsh care homes, hospitals, GPs and schools are in areas where the levels are 
currently too high. 

 
Reducing the particulate matter pollution levels will save lives. The 2023 joint report by 
British Heart Foundation Northern Ireland and the Irish Heart Foundation 
(https://www.bhf.org.uk/-/media/files/what-we-do/in-your-area-northern-ireland-pages/air- 
pollution-and-mortality-on-the-island-of-ireland- 
report.pdf?rev=7f884a2856784374928acb956f2706b9&hash=B6714D212095722B95909C93 
C2E03279) estimated approximately 950 lives could be saved each year across the island of 
Ireland if PM2.5 levels were reduced to 5.0 μg/m3 – 382 in Northern Ireland and 564 in the 
Republic of Ireland. Air pollution levels are higher in Wales so a similar study if 
commissioned here would likely show even more deaths prevented. 

 
Nitrogen oxides 

 
Nitrogen oxides comprises nitric oxide (NO) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2), and as a group of 
pollutants they have significant impact on health and the environment. The top sources of 
NO2 are road transport (34%), energy generation (22%)and other transport (17%). 

 
Nitrogen dioxide causes inflammation of the airways, increased susceptibility to 
respiratory infections and to allergens. If someone already has a respiratory condition such 
as asthma and COPD, short term exposure could lead to exacerbations of the condition 
and hospitalisation. Long term exposure can cause certain respiratory conditions 
including asthma. 

 
At present, the law on nitrogen dioxide (NO2) pollution in Wales says annual average 
concentrations cannot exceed 40 μg/m3 (micrograms per cubic metre of air). In 2017 
Welsh Government was taken to court by Client Earth due to these limits being exceeded 
in Cardiff, Caerphilly (Hafod Yr Ynys) and trunk roads. Action was taken to restrict vehicle 
access, demolish homes and reduce speeds to reduce these levels. The most recent 
DEFRA compliance assessment (on air in 2021) shows the South Wales Zone still failing to 
meet the NO2 annual limit value (https://uk- 
air.defra.gov.uk/library/annualreport/assets/documents/annualreport/air_pollution_uk_202 
1_Compliance_Assessment_Summary_Issue1.pdf) , when this was meant to be met by 
2010, or 2015 at the latest. Analysing 2019 air pollution data, Asthma + Lung UK Cymru was 
able to estimate NO2 and PM2.5 levels around care homes, libraries, sports grounds, 
hospitals, GPs and schools. 

 
In September 2021, the World Health Organization (WHO) published new Air Quality 
Guidelines (AQGs) reducing the recommended maximum annual average for NO2 
pollution to 10 μg/m, down from 40ug/m3. Meeting this level will be challenging with an 
estimated 21.7% of care homes, 22% of libraries, 18.9% of sports grounds, 26.1% of hospitals, 
34.9% of GPs and 21.8% of schools being in areas of unsafe levels according to 2019 
modelled data analysed by Asthma + Lung UK Cymru. 

 
Given the new WHO guidelines on NO2, much reduced on health grounds, the Bill must 
also specify that new NO2 targets must be set. This could for instance be as a section 

Tudalen y pecyn 41

http://www.bhf.org.uk/-/media/files/what-we-do/in-your-area-northern-ireland-pages/air-


between 2 and 3. It should be noted that at the time the UK Environment Bill was being 
developed the WHO had not yet produced their updated AQGs. 

 
Legislating for new targets 

 
In the explanatory memorandum (EM 3.13) it states: “Our Programme for Government for 
2021 to 2026 reiterated our commitment to introduce a Clean Air Act for Wales, consistent 
with World Health Organization (WHO) guidance and to extend the provision of air quality 
monitoring. This will include taking account of the latest scientific information, including 
the updated WHO guideline levels, alongside taking independent expert advice, to inform 
the development of new air quality targets.” and EM 14 states: ‘Pursuant to subsection (1), 
before making regulations under sections 1 or 2 Welsh Ministers must: (a) seek advice from 
persons they consider to be independent and have relevant expertise; and (b) have regard 
to scientific knowledge on air pollution. This could include, for example, international 
evidence on the health and environmental effects of air pollution, including the World 
Health Organization guidelines for air quality, and the economic, technical and social 
analyses, and the feasibility of meeting targets.’ 

 
We welcome the commitment in the Bill to seek relevant advice and to have regard to 
scientific knowledge, and the references to the new WHO guidelines in the EM but worry 
that there is nothing in the Bill to ensure that targets will be set to be consistent with 
WHO guidance, as committed to. In theory, there would be nothing to prevent a Minister 
from choosing a much less rigorous target. It must be made clear in the Bill itself that the 
up to date WHO guidelines need to be the foundation of the target setting process, and 
that targets must be consistent with them - and must be met in the shortest time 
possible. We would like to see this captured on the face of the Bill, potentially listed in 
section 3, 5, 6 or become its own section. 

 
We are disappointed that S.1(1) states that Ministers ‘may set long-terms targets’, whilst 
S.2(1) states that they ‘must’. We would like the Bill to capture in law the Welsh 
Government commitment to legislate to deliver the World Health Organization limits on 
air pollution and give citizens the ‘right to breathe clean air.’ 

 
New air pollution targets need to be set for all pollutants included in the 2021 guidelines, 
so we would like to see all the pollutants covered by section 1 required to have new 
targets, so S.1(1) would need to become ‘must’ rather than ‘may.’ 

 
We welcome the inclusion of section 5 and a reporting process that allows for Senedd 
scrutiny, but we are concerned about the time it would take for action to be taken. The 
targets will be set with regulations described in sections 1 and 2, but these targets may be 
for future dates rather than now. Delivering WHO limits on NO2 and PM2.5 will take many 
years, so the targets set by Ministers might be for 2035 or 2040, potentially with some 
interim targets in the years preceding this. Therefore, the timeline described in section 5 
wouldn’t start until many years into the future. We would therefore like to see S.5(2) 
amended to require Ministers to report on progress on air pollution targets annually rather 
than simply the ‘reporting date.’ 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 
 

2.ii) Promoting awareness about air pollution (section 8) 
 
 

As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and support our joint response to this part of the 
consultation, as follows: 

 
Welsh Government should run targeted informational campaigns on the environmental 
and health impacts of air pollution. 

 
In promoting awareness about air pollution, Welsh Government should also commit to 
promoting awareness of behaviour-change solutions that can reduce air pollution. Just as 
public bodies will be required to have due regard for the impact on air quality, raising 
awareness of air pollution should be linked to promotion of healthy behaviours to improve 
our air quality such as active travel and the need for modal shift. 

 
Research (Physical Activity through Sustainable Transport Approaches, 2019) has shown 
that social factors impact on behaviours. Those who valued low air pollution exposure and 
low environmental impacts, amongst others values, tended to walk more; “this suggests 
that if people could see the importance of these values, they may be encouraged to walk 
more” (Imperial College London News, 19 September 2019). 

 
The current Net Zero Plan to reduce passenger miles by 10% and increase the modal share 
for active travel and public transport to 39% by 2030 are ambitious. However, regulatory 
tools within this legislation combined with a whole-system approach to promoting 
awareness on air pollution and modal shift will go some way towards meeting our existing 
Net Zero targets. 

Some targets might be set immediately, but even with those we are concerned about the 
speed of reporting. S.5(4) states ‘Where the Welsh Ministers make a statement that a 
target has not been met, the Welsh Ministers must, before the end of 12 months 
beginning with the date on which the statement is laid, lay before the Senedd, and 
publish, a report.’ 

 
With almost 2,000 lives cut short every year due to air pollution, we worry that 12 months 
to publish a report setting out what the Welsh Government will do to correct air pollution 
exceedance is too long. We would like to see this reduced to 6 months, if not further. 

 
Finally, it is unclear at what an individual, institution or organisation would be able to seek 
legal redress if the legal limits continued to be exceeded. Through membership of the EU, 
citizens previously had this right through the EU Ambient Air Quality Directive 
2008/50/EC. S.5(5)(b) states that a report must set out the steps the Welsh Ministers have 
taken, or intend to take, to ensure the specified standard is achieved as soon as reasonably 
practicable.’ We are concerned this wording is unclear and would like the Bill to set a 
timescale, for example ‘within 6 months.’ 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 
We would welcome powers for Ministers to develop a clean air strategy with the 
commitment to an air quality strategy with a clear review process. We do think, however, 
that the current wording presents a risk that the strategy will be ignored by public bodies 
where it states they ‘must have regard to the policies’. We would prefer stronger wording 
to ensure public bodies commit to the bold action required to ensure clean air. 

 
We don’t have any specific comments on this section. 

2.iii) National air quality strategy (sections 9 to 11) 
 

 

2.iv) Air quality ulations (section 12) 
 

 

2.v) Local air quality management (sections 13 to 15) 
 
 

As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and support our joint response to this part of the 
consultation, as follows: 

 
The current process of monitoring national and local air pollution is inadequate, creates 
confusion for the public and gives a false picture of the air pollution challenges that Wales 
faces. The existence of two different monitoring systems - one based on a small number of 
monitors for previous EU directive purposes and local monitoring based largely on 
diffusion tubes is unhelpful. When the Welsh Government faced legal action for NO2 
exceedances this was due to national monitoring. Welsh Government has taken action to 
reduce these, but there are other areas with exceedances where monitoring is not taking 
place. 

 
Welsh Government recognise in the explanatory memorandum, (EM 3.127) that the 
current system is not working so section 14 is designed to tackle these issues. We welcome 
the need for local authorities to require an annual review of local air quality, and to need to 
commit to a compliance date agreed with Welsh Government. As EM 3.133 states the 
current framework only requires local authorities to develop actions ‘in pursuit’ of 
compliance. This could lead to the same air quality management areas remaining for 
years. 

 
What is unclear from the Bill and the explanatory memorandum is how the local authority 
reporting cycle aligns with Welsh Government’s reporting cycle to the Senedd. If a 
national monitoring network is established and is reporting data to both Welsh 
Government and to local authorities, should S.13(3) still be a local authority requirement or 
should the duty lie with Welsh Government? 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 
We don’t have any specific comments on this section. 

 
 

2.vi) Smoke control (sections 16 to 18) 
 

 

2.vii) Vehicle emissions (sections 19 to 21) 
 
 

Trunk Road Charging 
 

We support the Bill’s intention to enable Welsh Ministers to establish trunk road charging 
schemes. Firstly, we support this ability, as set out in the Bill, for the specific purpose of 
reducing or limiting air pollution in the vicinity of the trunk road to which the scheme will 
apply. Secondly, we also support this ability to establish trunk road charging schemes, as 
set out in the Bill, for any other reason. 

 
Car-dominated spaces create congestion and damage our environment and health. 
Damage is caused by air pollution, but also by other factors including poor road safety; the 
severance of communities by busy highways, the damage to the economy caused by 
congestion; noise pollution; and public health concerns caused by low levels of physical 
activity. Because damage is more extensive than air pollution alone, it is justifiable to 
establish trunk road charging schemes for reasons other than limiting air pollution. 

 
Trunk road charging schemes could be a positive step towards creating more equitable, 
healthy, and liveable places. We see the potential to reduce congestion and promote 
sustainable, active travel, while also establishing new funding to invest in public transport 
and active travel. This could provide a real alternative to driving for many people, making it 
easier and more affordable to choose sustainable modes of transport. 

 
Any charging scheme must be designed with equity in mind. We know that the impacts 
of air pollution and traffic congestion are often felt most acutely by low-income 
communities and disabled people. By ensuring that charging schemes are equitable, in 
the way payments are collected and in the types of interventions and areas where funding 
is reinvested, we can work towards creating a fairer and more sustainable city for all. 

 
--- 

S.5(4) requires the Welsh Government to make a statement within 12 months of a target 
not being met. Would Section 14 need to be aligned with section 5 to ensure that Welsh 
Ministers had this information before they make their statement to the Senedd? 

 
Finally, the current local air quality management is struggling based on the current air 
pollution exceedances. As the targets are reduced to meet the World Health Organization 
limits, there will be a lot more exceedances in both NO2 and PM2.5. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



However, there is a part of the Bill we believe should be strengthened. We are concerned 
about a broadening of the range of use for income derived from trunk road charging 
schemes implemented for the purpose of reducing or limiting air pollution. We do not 
agree with broadening this range for trunk road charging schemes designed to limit air 
pollution, while at the same time, proceeds derived from schemes implemented for any 
other reason are “available only for application for the purpose of directly or indirectly 
facilitating the achievement of any policies or proposals relating to transport.” We believe 
the proceeds in all schemes should only be available to transport policies and proposals. 

 
We believe the proceeds of this type of trunk road charging scheme should be ring- 
fenced for transport interventions that are evidenced to mitigate the air quality problems 
that gave rise to the scheme being implemented in the first place. Given the stated 
intention is to meet the policy objective of improving poor local air quality caused by 
emissions from transport, it does not seem sensible to us to broaden the range of 
measures the Welsh Government can implement using the proceeds. We believe that 
using proceeds locally, in transport schemes designed to reduce emissions and encourage 
modal shift from emitting vehicles, is the most effective way to address local air quality 
concerns. 

 
In addition, we would also be concerned that potentially not using the proceeds to 
mitigate the local emissions caused by transport would damage public confidence in such 
trunk road charging schemes. 

 
Using ring-fenced funding, the aim of transport interventions in the vicinity of trunk road 
charging schemes should be to encourage modal shift, consistent with existing Welsh 
Government policy. Llwybr Newydd clearly sets out the Welsh Government’s plans to 
reduce the number of journeys taken by private cars and increase the number of people 
walking, cycling and using public transport. The Welsh Government has a target of 39% of 
journeys to be by sustainable modes by 2030, and 45% by 2040. The Welsh Government 
has just accepted the recommendation of the Roads Review panel, whose first condition 
for new Welsh Government investment in road schemes is to support modal shift and 
reduce carbon emissions. 

 
The types of possible transport interventions are many and varied. However, in terms of air 
quality we would emphasize that by any measure active travel is the lowest pollution- 
emitting form of travel. Walking, cycling and wheeling do not emit any local pollution 
because they do not use carbon fuels. Given the smaller scale of active travel infrastructure 
compared to road or rail, there is also less embodied carbon and emissions caused offsite 
during construction. 

 
We know that e-bikes are growing in popularity, and can be used for longer journeys than 
conventional bikes. 15km is a reasonable distance to travel on an e-bike, and on regional 
commuter cycleways in some European countries the high use of e-bikes means it is now 
the average journey length. Building active travel infrastructure with this range in mind 
was a recommendation of the Roads Review Panel. We know that across the UK, almost 
two-thirds of trips (64%) involving ‘A’ roads used these roads for less than 5 miles (8km). 
Even on UK motorways 40% of trips are less than 10 miles (16km). 

Vehicle idling 

We support the policy objectives of the Bill to reduce vehicle idling, and especially around 
hotspots such as schools. As set out throughout this response, emissions from vehicles are 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



damaging to health, and we welcome any policy aimed at reducing emissions. Pollution 
emitted while vehicles idle is completely unnecessary and we support efforts to change 
this behaviour. 

 
We support the intention of the legislation to increase the rate of enforcement of the 
stationary idling offence, as well as increase the rate of the fixed penalty. Increased 
enforcement along with higher penalties is more likely to encourage behaviour change, 
reduce idling and consequently to reduce emissions. 

 
--- 

 
However, we believe this part of the Bill should be strengthened. 

 
The Bill’s intention is to enable Welsh Ministers to make Regulations that set a monetary 
range of penalties that local authorities could impose for the existing stationary idling 
offence. In effect this would mean an increase in the charge from £20, to a range 
suggested in the Explanatory Memorandum as £40 - £80. Guidance would be issued to 
local authorities which would make clear that the higher part of the range could be 
applied in more serious cases, i.e. in hotspots such as next to schools. The decision on 
setting the level of fixed penalties within the prescribed range would rest with Local 
Authorities. 

 
The rationale shared by the Welsh Government for this measure is that a fixed penalty set 
at £20 does not provide a cost-effective incentive for local authorities to enforce the 
existing offence. We would question whether a fixed penalty set at the proposed lower 
limit of £40 is going to make a significant difference to the incentive and to enforcement 
levels, and to contribute meaningfully to behaviour change. 

 
We are also not convinced by the Welsh Government setting guidance for local authorities 
on the pricing level for fixed penalties they issue for this offence, whereas currently it is set 
at a fixed statutory rate for all local authorities. This part of the Bill is premised on the fact 
that emissions caused while idling should be reduced and that a higher fee is the correct 
policy to do so. This premise must apply equally across Wales. So we do not understand 
the rationale for allowing some local authorities to set lower penalties than others. Across 
Wales, the fixed penalty should be set at an appropriate higher rate to incentivise all local 
authorities to enforce the offence, creating an effective deterrent and encouraging 
behaviour change. 

 
--- 

 
While we support the policy objectives of the Bill to reduce vehicle idling, we also believe 
that the policy objective of reducing emissions at hotspots such as schools can be 
achieved more effectively by other policies and possible legislation. Indeed, there are 
many other policies proven to effectively reduce emissions which are not included in this 
Bill. 

 
“School streets” projects are one such example. They limit the traffic travelling nearby 
schools at pick up and drop off times. Research from Edinburgh Napier University shows 
that school streets projects help reduce pollution both in and around schools. A consistent 
reduction in the volume of vehicles near a school gate would inevitably have a greater 
impact on emissions than any reduction hoped for by a change in behaviour while idling. 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 
We welcome the commitment to produce and publish a Soundscapes Strategy. 

 
There is evidence to suggest that traffic noise can be dangerous to our health. There is a 
level of noise defined by the World Health Organisation which is suitable for people to be 
exposed to and anything more than that can cause health problems. 

 
Evidence shows that traffic noise can disturb sleep and even increase the risk of stroke. 
Those surrounded by daytime traffic noise higher than the levels identified were found to 
be 4% more likely to die. Scientists found that excessive traffic noise can lead to high blood 
pressure, sleep problems and stress (Halonen, 2015). 

 
The WHO defines 55dB as a noise level that can cause health problems. This is the same 
level as a loud conversation. WHO guidelines recommend noise levels in a community of 
less than 30dB. Figures show that many people across Europe are exposed to noise levels 
which are bad for their health. 

 
We support provisions for strategic noise maps and noise action plans. Individuals should 
not be subject to noise levels that negatively impact health and these plans will ensure a 
commitment to safe noise levels for communities across Wales. 

 
Nothing to add to this section. 

 
 

2.viii) National soundscapes strategy (sections 22 and 23)) 
 

 

2.ix) Strategic noise map and noise action plans (sections 24) 
 

 

2.x) General provisions (sections 25 to 28); 
 

In addition, school streets have other public health benefits such as improved road safety 
and encouraging children to travel actively. 

 
Sustrans Cymru is a partner to many local authorities and schools within them who are 
implementing school streets. However, implementation is still relatively slow, and the rate 
is very varied across different parts of Wales. New schools are still being built in Wales 
which do not have school streets. This is just one example of a transport policy that is 
known to be effective at improving air quality in hotspots such as schools, which could 
usefully be included in the legislation but is not. 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 
It will be important to ensure clarity of responsibility for Welsh Government and Local 
Authorities. 

 
As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and support our joint response to this part of the 
consultation, as follows: 

 
In many ways the Bill gives too wide-ranging powers, but there are sections where these 
powers don’t go far enough. Sections 1 and 2 for examples give powers to set targets but 
Ministers are not constrained by how ambitious or how urgent these targets are in 
improving air quality. As stated earlier, we would like to see the World Health Organization 
limits recognise somewhere within the legislation itself rather than just referenced in the 
appendix. 

 
If the Bill does not go far enough there is the consequence that it will take many years to 
find legislative time to pass another Environment Bill. 

 
As a member of Healthy Air Cymru, we have worked with partners to develop a shared 
position on air quality issues and support our joint response to this part of the 
consultation, as follows: 

 
Welsh Government has set out a detailed breakdown of the estimated costs of the Bill in 
pages 79-156 in the Explanatory Memorandum. The calculations would have been done 
with a clear methodology, and we support the investments in monitoring, consultancy 
support, awareness campaigns and governance, but there are some areas where the 
amounts proposed seem far too low. 

 
LAQM 

3. What are the potential barriers to the implementation of the Bill’s provisions and how 
does the Bill take account of them? 

 

 

4. How appropriate are the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate 
legislation (as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? 

 

 

5. Are any unintended consequences likely to arise from the Bill? 
 

 

6. What are your views on the Welsh Government’s assessment of the financial implications 
of the Bill as set out in Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 
N/A. 

The EM proposes a budget of £1 million per year to provide a revenue/capital allocation to 
assist councils in meeting the new targets locally. This seems very small if it is truly going 
to make a difference locally. In 2019 Welsh Government allocated a fund of £20 million to 
tackle air pollution mostly directed at Cardiff and Caerphilly councils. The cost of road and 
traffic changes and the compulsory purchasing of houses were huge and this fund also 
helped with better monitoring and purchasing electric buses. £1 million for all of Wales 
would make very little difference, so doesn’t seem very realistic. 

 
Trunk roads 

 
The EM only includes a one-off cost of £30k for the trunk road powers in 2024/25. This 
might be the cost of the civil service time to develop the guidance, but it seems 
disingenuous to say that Road User Charging will be completely revenue neutral. In the 
long term this might be the case, but the preparation and introduction years would be 
expensive with the costs only recovered later. 

 
Statutory idling 

 
The EM proposes a budget of only £16.4k for 2024/25 with no further costs. There is a 
missing row where it states ‘local authority costs to follow guidance.’ Similar to smoke 
control areas, this is an area where most councils would need to employ new staff so these 
costs will be large. Table 11 states that ‘a level of support will be available from the LAQM 
Support Fund’, but as stated earlier, we worry this fund is far too small. 

 
 

7. Are there any other issues that you would like to raise about the Bill and the 
accompanying Explanatory Memorandum or any related matters? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

  

AQS 14 Living Streets 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith | Climate Change, 
Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) | The Environment 
(Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

Ymateb gan Living Streets | Evidence from Living Streets 

Tudalen y pecyn 51

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 
Consultation: The Environment  
(Air Quality and Soundscapes)  
(Wales) Bill 
 

1 
 

Living Streets Cymru response 
Friday 21st April 2023 

 

For more details contact: 
Josh James, Public Affairs Manager -  

 

 Living Streets Cymru 
Living Streets Cymru is the charity for everyday walking in Wales. We want to create 
a nation free from congested roads and pollution, reducing the risk of preventable 
illness and social isolation, and making walking the natural choice for everybody. 

We operate a number of programmes across Wales including our flagship WOW 
Walk to School programme, which aims to reverse the decline in the number of 
children walking to school, and Walking Friends Wales which aims to increase the 
levels of physical activity for older and more vulnerable people at risk of social 
isolation and/or preventable disease. 

 

1. Living Streets Cymru’s views on the general principles of the Bill and 
the need for legislation to deliver the stated policy intention. 

We recognise that there have been improvements to air quality, with emissions being 
reduced by 43% between 1990 and 2018. However, there is no safe level of air 
pollution. Conversely, there has been an increase in the level of transport emissions 
which now make the largest contribution to domestic air pollution. 

Pollution from road traffic, particularly diesel fumes is the most significant cause of 
poor air quality and can be responsible for up to 70% of air pollution. 

We must accelerate the reduction in emissions and air pollution. Doing so will reduce 
health and social inequalities, improve quality and life expectancy, reduce our 
environmental impact and reduce the burden of disease that are all associated with 
poor air quality. 

People who walk or cycle do not contribute to poor air quality but are unfairly 
exposed to it. We need legislation to encourage healthier behaviours, including more 
people walking, cycling and using public transport as well as measure to penalise 
vehicle-idling, because nothing else has worked, we still see many communities 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 
Consultation: The Environment  
(Air Quality and Soundscapes)  
(Wales) Bill 
 

2 
 

living in air which does not meet international guidance from the World Health 
Organisation. 

 

2. Living Streets Cymru’s view of the following bill provisions: 

2i. Nationasl air quality targets 
We welcome the commitment in the Bill to seek relevant advice and to have regard 
to scientific knowledge, and the references to the new WHO guidelines in the EM, 
however we worry that there is nothing in the Bill to ensure that targets will be set to 
be consistent with WHO guidance, as committed to. In theory there would be nothing 
to prevent a Minister from choosing a much less rigorous target. It must be made 
clear in the Bill itself that the up to date WHO guidelines need to be the foundation of 
the target setting process, and that targets must be consistent with them - and must 
be met in the shortest time possible. We would like to see this captured on the face 
of the Bill, potentially listed in section 3, 5, 6 or become its own section. 

Living Streets supports the commitment in the Bill to seek relevant advice and to 
have regard to scientific knowledge. However, we feel that the text of the Bill does 
not adequately reflect the ambition to improve air quality. We cannot help but 
recognise that improving air quality should be a universal aim and is supported 
across the political spectrum. However, without the impetus to improve air quality 
referenced specifically in the legislation, we worry that relying solely on targets being 
set by ministers could lead to a lack of ambition to deliver cleaner air.  

Furthermore, without referencing the specific World Health Organisation targets in 
the legislation, it weakens the legislation. Less rigorous targets could hinder public 
sector ability to improve air quality. 

Living Streets calls on those with the opportunity to amend the legislation to include 
WHO guidance in the target-setting process, with the WHO guidance forming a 
starting point for scientific and expert advice. 

 

2ii. Promoting awareness about air pollution 
Welsh Government should run targeted informational campaigns on the 
environmental and health impacts of air pollution. 
 
In promoting awareness about air pollution, Welsh Government should also commit 
to promoting awareness of behaviour-change solutions that can reduce air pollution. 
Just as public bodies will be required to have due regard for the impact on air quality, 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 
Consultation: The Environment  
(Air Quality and Soundscapes)  
(Wales) Bill 
 

3 
 

raising awareness of air pollution should be linked to promotion of healthy 
behaviours to improve our air quality such as active travel and the need for modal 
shift.  
Research (Physical Activity through Sustainable Transport Approaches, 2019) has 
shown that social factors impact on behaviours. Those who valued low air pollution 
exposure and low environmental impacts, amongst others values, tended to walk 
more; “this suggests that if people could see the importance of these values, they 
may be encouraged to walk more” (Imperial College London News, 19 September 
2019). 
 
The current Net Zero Plan to reduce passenger miles by 10% and increase the 
modal share for active travel and public transport to 39% by 2030 are ambitious. 
However, regulatory tools within this legislation combined with a whole-system 
approach to promoting awareness on air pollution and modal shift will go some way 
towards meeting our existing Net Zero targets. 
 

2vii. Vehicle emissions 
Vehicle emissions, particularly from private cars, are one of the greatest contributors 
to air pollution. As a result, there is an inevitable link between the number of vehicles 
on our roads and the quality of our air. The number of people choosing to travel 
actively will be important in tackling air pollution and reducing vehicle emissions.  
 
Existing targets in the Net Zero Plan to reduce emissions by 22% between 2019 and 
2025, and by 98% by 2040, and highlights the need for this legislation to utilise all 
tools at Welsh Government’s disposal including the introduction of clean air zones 
under existing powers in addition to exercising trunk road charging that would be 
introduced in this bill.  
 
 
Trunk Road charging 
 
Living Streets Cymru supports the introduction of trunk road charging. Funds raised 
from trunk road charging should be ring-fenced for active travel and public transport 
infrastructure, to further improve air quality across Wales. 
 
Living Streets Cymru would also support a requirement to introduce clean air zones 
should insufficient progress be made in individual local authorities to improve air 
quality. These powers already exist under the Transport Act (2000). We would urge 
Welsh Government to look at the use of these powers particularly where pollution 
levels exceed the targets set by ministers. We are concerned that trunk road 
charging alone will have sufficient impact. 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



 
Consultation: The Environment  
(Air Quality and Soundscapes)  
(Wales) Bill 
 

4 
 

 
It is important to recognise that all vehicles create particulate matter. The Tyndall 
Centre found that even if all new cars were ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVs) by 
2035, a 58% reduction in car mileage between 2016 and 2035 would still be required 
to meet the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s recommendations for air 
quality. 

This is because electrification will not reduce emissions of fine particulate matter 
from brake, tyre and road-surface wear either. These now collectively exceed that of 
emissions from diesel and petrol cars. Hence the importance of tools to reduce 
overall traffic to reduce the levels of fine particulate matter in our air. 

 
Vehicle idling  
 
We strongly welcome S.21 amendments to the Environment Act 1995 to make 
stationary idling an offence under the S.42 of the Road Traffic Act 1988. Every 
minute, an idling car produces enough exhaust emissions to fill 150 balloons with 
harmful chemicals, including cyanide, NOx and PM2.5. 
 
A 2016 study found that one factor in people choosing to make journeys on foot was 
environmental aesthetics, including air quality and fresh air (Dadpour et al. 2016, Int 
J Environ Res Public Health: 731). With cleaner air we can encourage people to 
travel actively and promote the benefits of outside physical activity.  
 
However, we would welcome clarity on how the Welsh Government expects 
penalties for stationary idling to be issued, and which bodies will be tasked with the 
enforcement of the offence. 
 
4. How appropriate are the powers in the bill for Welsh Ministers to 

make subordinate legislation? 
In many ways the Bill gives too wide-ranging powers, but there are sections where 
these powers don’t go far enough. Sections 1 and 2 for examples give powers to set 
targets but Ministers are not constrained by how ambitious or how urgent these 
targets are in improving air quality.  
 
As stated earlier, we would like to see the World Health Organization limits recognise 
somewhere within the legislation itself rather than just referenced in the appendix. 
However, there are other areas where ministerial powers are constrained. On smoke 
control areas, the power to establish one seems to remain with the local authority, 
whilst S.19(1)(b) places constraints on when Ministers would be able to introduce 
trunk road charging.  

Tudalen y pecyn 55



The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

  

AQS 09 The Institute of Acoustics (IOA) 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith | Climate Change, 
Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) | The Environment 
(Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

Ymateb gan | Evidence from The Institute of Acoustics (IOA) 

Tudalen y pecyn 56

Eitem 3

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://business.senedd.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=741
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 1 of 6 

Senedd Cymru 

Welsh Parliament 

 

The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Bill 

Consultation 

 

Background 

 

The Institute of Acoustics (IOA) is the UK’s professional organisation for those working in the 
fields of sound, noise and vibration.  Members of the Institute carry out research into the effects 
of noise on human health and wellbeing.  Members also implement the national policies, 
legislation and guidance that deal with the management of noise.  This is in the capacity of both 
assisting developers to meet their policy and legislative obligations and as regulators evaluating 
the merits of proposals or applying the relevant legislation. 

 

The Institute’s response relates to the soundscape element of the Bill and considers each 
proposed clause in turn.  Some comments are also provided regarding the text in the 
Explanatory Memorandum. 

 

This response has been prepared by experienced members of the Institute including members 
who practise in Wales.  This response has been approved by the IOA’s Executive Committee on 
behalf of the IOA’s Governing Council. 

 

Clause 22. National strategy on soundscapes 

(1) The Welsh Ministers must prepare and publish a strategy containing their policies 

with respect to the assessment and management of soundscapes in Wales 

 

The Institute supports the proposal to require Welsh Ministers to publish a such a strategy.  In 
fact, the IOA has only recently advocated to the House of Lords Science and Technology 
Committee that England should have a Sound and Noise Management Strategy to enhance the 
implementation of the overarching noise policy in England set out in the Noise Policy Statement 
for England.  The Institute has recommended that one of the purposes of this strategy would be 
to promote positively the use of soundscape principles as a means of generating spaces which 
enhance well-being through generating a sense of place, community and connection with nature 
and each other.1  At present the policies in the NPSE are mainly implemented through 
managing the noise impact of new developments and meeting the first two aims of the policy.2 

 
1 When giving oral evidence recently to an inquiry being carried out by the House of Lords Science and Technology Committee, the 
IOA noted that the Welsh Parliament were leading the way with their approach on Soundscapes. 
2 The NPSE contains a Vision which states:  Promote good health and a good quality of life through the effective management of 
noise within the context of Government policy on sustainable development.   
This Vision is supported by three aims: 
Through the effective management and control of environmental, neighbour and neighbourhood noise within the context of 
Government policy on sustainable development:  

• avoid significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life;  

• mitigate and minimise adverse impacts on health and quality of life;  

• and where possible, contribute to the improvement of health and quality of life.  

Tudalen y pecyn 57



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 2 of 6 

Furthermore, there is general agreement amongst those Institute members who practise in 
Wales that noise impact assessments associated with developments in Wales should include a 
Soundscape Assessment.  

As in England, there are the three main reasons for this view: 

• Not all sound causes adverse effects.  For example, it is important to preserve a vibrant 

city soundscape which includes music, crowds, street entertainment etc, and not simply 

to regard that sound from such activities as unwanted and consequently should be 

minimised or even eliminated.  However, to achieve this outcome, care must be taken to 

avoid the inappropriate placement of residential development within a city that then puts 

pressure on, for example, pre-existing places of entertainment.  Although exercising the 

agent of change principle helps to provide some protection, it is not the panacea. 

• Undertaking soundscape assessments would help to preserve an existing tranquil 

environment from the impact that might otherwise occur from the introduction of a new 

noise source.  Having said that, these types of environment tend to be well protected by 

the proper implementation of existing noise guidance, assuming they are correctly 

identified as noise-sensitive receptors. 

• Sound can be used to enhance health and wellbeing and promote delivery of 

sustainable development.  This is an important area of emerging science that needs 

strategic direction to encourage delivery in practice, so that soundscapes are optimized 

rather than the focus always being on achieving targets needed to minimise adverse 

health effects.   

 

However, the IOA recognises that, although the concept of soundscapes has been around for a 
while, exactly how its principles are precisely applied to particular situations in an evidence-
based way is still evolving.  Members of the Institute who operate in Wales are concerned 
regarding whether the regulators (e.g. local Environmental Health Practitioners (EHP)) have the 
necessary experience and knowledge to review such soundscape assessments.  Whilst training 
could be provided (and the Institute of Acoustics would be delighted to assist in that) do local 
councils have the capacity to allow EHPs to undertake training in the topic.  Conversely, without 
proper training there would be the risk of the optimum outcome not being secured in any 
particular situation. 

Furthermore, the kind of holistic approach that is included in a soundscape assessment is likely 
to require more time for the regulators to review it, potentially adding costs to the local 
authorities.   

Similarly, it must be recognised that this type of approach to sound/noise assessment may have 
a cost implication on developers/business owners who will also be subject to additional time 
costs both in terms of the assessment work and with the likely need for more consultation and 
liaison with regulators.  Members of the IOA have already detected that some developers are 
wary of this proposed approach and could be less supportive of the proposals especially in the 
early days as the implementation details are developing.    

There is also a concern that members of the IOA who are acoustic consultants will become 
trapped between regulators and developers with the potential for neither party agreeing on what 
the appropriate outcome should be.  It is essential that such conflicts are satisfactorily resolved 
in order to make a success of preserving and enhancing the soundscapes across Wales. 

It is of course understood that we need to begin the implementation of this process somewhere.  
Careful consideration will be needed, particularly in the early stages, regarding how this policy is 
applied and enforced such that there is appropriate consistency across Wales whilst allowing for 
local context to be taken into account. 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 3 of 6 

 

(2) The strategy must include policies for assessing and reducing levels of noise 
pollution 

 

Whilst there is no disagreement with the sentiment of this clause, the IOA has a fear that 
expressing it in this way on the face of the bill could be counter-productive.  There will 
undoubtedly be the need for developments in the future that will increase the noise impact on 
some individuals compared to the current situation.  Those individuals could argue that 
legislation is about reducing noise levels and have a strong case for opposing the development, 
even if the expected increase in impact is small.  Furthermore, for existing sources there could 
be pressure on the Government to reduce noise, again basing that argument on legislation that 
says levels must be reduced. 

Furthermore, local councils may be put under pressure to remove an existing sound source 
because this legislation says noise levels must be reduced.  In the extreme, the council may be 
requested to close down a factory to reduce noise pollution, for example.  This would clearly not 
necessarily be the desired outcome given the impact on jobs etc. 

It is also very important to remember that noise pollution to one person may not be to another. 
The subjective nature of sound and the labelling of it as ‘pollution’ could lead to marginalization, 
community division or exclusion of elements of society.  This could potentially be the outcome of 
the legislation as currently proposed. 

 

Consequently, as written, it looks as if reducing noise is paramount, over and above the social 
and economic benefit of the source.  An alternative approach might be to reword that clause to 
read: 

 

The strategy must include policies for effectively managing noise pollution. 

 

The strategy could then contain policies that take account of the social, economic and other 
environmental benefits of the noise making source.  In addition, it could include targets in the 
form of reducing the overall exposure to noise, initially making use of the data that comes from 
noise mapping.  These targets might be expressed in terms of  

• The proportion of population exposed to external levels above a certain value; and / or 

• Using the principles of the World Health Organisation Burden of Disease, have targets 
set in terms of reducing the Disability Adjusted Life Years (DALY) due to noise. 

 

Clauses 22 (3) to (6) – The IOA supports these proposals.  

 

Clause 22 (7) The Welsh Ministers may by regulations amend this section for the purpose 
of changing the period within which they must review the strategy. 

The IOA supports this proposal.  For the strategy to be effective, Welsh Ministers must have the 
ability to react quickly to any emerging evidence, either in terms of the noise impact occurring or 
new research about the effects of noise.  Of course, the robustness of such research must be 
established before reacting to its findings.  

 

Clause 22 (8) - The IOA supports this proposal. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 4 of 6 

Clause 22 (9) – The IOA is not in a position formally to comment on this clause.  However, The 
Institute does support the principle of clarifying the meaning of “local authority”. 

 

Clause 23. Duty to have regard to national strategy on soundscapes  

 

(1) The following persons must have regard to the policies in the strategy published 
under 10 section 22 when exercising any function of a public nature that could affect 
soundscapes in Wales—  

(a) local authorities in Wales;  

(b) relevant Welsh public authorities.  

 

It is helpful to make explicit on the face of the bill that these authorities must not ignore the 
policies contained within the strategy.  However, it is essential that the strategy must be 
absolutely clear regarding the outcomes that these authorities must achieve when making 
decisions that could affect the soundscape.  Effective soundscape management cannot be 
achieved by simply requiring a certain numerical noise limit to be achieved.  The effect of non-
acoustic factors means that, as mentioned above, people are affected by different noise sources 
to different extents.  

Furthermore, if a noise exposure limit was set such that no-one would be expected to be 
adversely affected and thus arguably achieving an ideal soundscape3, society as we know it 
today would probably come to a standstill with all the economic and social dis-benefits that 
would entail4.   

Thus, the outcomes to be sought would need to be carefully described to allow the relevant 
authorities to exercise their functions effectively for the benefit not only of the whole community 
but also of other species so that biodiversity benefits can be included. 

 

Clauses 23 (2) – (4) – The IOA is not in a position to comment, but supports the clarification 
and flexibility being described in these clauses. 

 

Clause 24. Power to change cycles for making strategic noise maps and reviewing noise 
action plans   

 

(1) The Welsh Ministers may by regulations amend regulation 7 of the Environmental 

Noise (Wales) Regulations 2006 (S.I. 2006/2629) (duty of the Welsh Ministers to 

make, review and revise strategic noise maps) to change the intervals for the time 

being specified by paragraph (2) of that regulation as the intervals at which 

strategic noise maps must be made and adopted. 

(2) The Welsh Ministers may by regulations amend regulation 17 of the Environmental 
Noise (Wales) Regulations 2006 (duty of the Welsh Ministers to draw up, review 
and revise action plans) to change the period for the time being specified by 
paragraph (3)(b) of that regulation as the period within which reviews of an action 
plan must be carried out. 

 

 
3 In terms of anthrophonic sounds 
4 The COVID lockdown gave some indication of this potential effect, and also illustrated how the usually masked natural sounds 
became more prominent. 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 5 of 6 

Notwithstanding people’s views about the merits or otherwise of leaving the European Union, 
the fact that it has occurred does allow Welsh Ministers to amend the timetables embedded in 
these regulations to suit their purposes better.  The Institute supports this proposal. 

 

Explanatory Memorandum 

 

The IOA has particularly considered the “Policy Objectives” under the heading of “National 
Soundscapes Strategy, Strategic Noise Maps and Action Plans”. 

 

Paragraph 3.240 

 

The Institute notes that the scope is not confined to the sources defined in the Environmental 
Noise (Wales) Regulations 2006 but that it would  

  
also cover other major forms of airborne noise and the whole of Wales  

 

Whilst it is assumed that this means covering all road and rail transport sources and, when 
appropriate, aviation sources, it is unclear what else might be covered.  The Environmental 
Noise Directive included industry, but this did sit uneasily with the other sources within its scope. 

The soundscape in some areas might be primarily affected by sources that are not 
transportation (such sources are described in English policy as ‘Neighbourhood Noise’). 

 

It would be helpful, therefore, if there was more clarification on the expected scope of the 
strategy. 

 

Paragraph 3.242 

 

This paragraph states that: 

 

Ensure clear priorities and opportunities are set for achieving appropriate soundscapes 
in Wales at a national level based on a comprehensive evidence base including, not only 
noise and soundscape evidence, but also wider environmental considerations such as 
air quality data; the State of Natural Resources Report and National Natural Resources 
Policy required by the Environment (Wales) Act 2016; and the Future Trends Report 
required by the WFGA;  

 

The Institute is particularly concerned with the highlighted phrase.  What exactly is meant by 
“appropriate soundscape”?  How will developers or regulators know if that outcome has been 
achieved in a particular situation? 

 

One of the challenges for Welsh Ministers is that the formal definition of soundscape is  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



Institute of Acoustics Consultation response – The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill Page 6 of 6 

acoustic environment as perceived or experienced and/or understood by a person or 
people, in context5 

Therefore, for a given location and given soundscape, for which person should the soundscape 
be appropriate?  There are likely to be differences between different people with them 
perceiving, experiencing or understanding the soundscape in different ways. 

The Institute believes that this intention within the policy objectives needs to be made much 
clearer so that developers and regulators can effectively implement the policy. 

Conclusion 

The IOA hope that the Welsh Parliament will find our comments of interest and that they will 
assist in developing this important piece of legislation.  The IOA is looking forward to speaking 
with the Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure Committee on this issue in May. 

26th April 2023 

Institute of Acoustics Limited 
Silbury Court,  
406 Silbury Boulevard 
Milton Keynes, MK9 2AF 

Email: ioa@ioa.org.uk 

5 BS ISO 12913-1:2014 – Acoustics – Soundscape, Part 1: Definition and conceptual framework 

Tudalen y pecyn 62

mailto:ioa@ioa.org.uk
http://www.ioa.org.uk/


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 63

Eitem 4Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 

yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Nodyn briffio  

Mae’r papur briffio hwn yn rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am eitemau a godwyd yn sesiwn 

graffu ddiweddar y pwyllgor gydag CNC. Mae’n cynnwys adrannau yn ymwneud â'r 

canlynol: 

1. Gwariant staff CNC 

2. Data ar sychder 

3. Diwygio mynediad, gan gynnwys mynediad at ddŵr 

4. Cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth 

 

Gwariant teithio staff CNC 
 

Yn dilyn cwestiwn gan Janet Finch Saunders AS ynghylch “Pa gamau y mae eich 

sefydliad yn eu cymryd i sicrhau mwy o werth am arian i’r trethdalwr o ran costau teithio 

staff?”: 

 

Wedi’i gyflymu mewn ymateb i bandemig COVID-19, gwnaethom ddatblygu system waith 

hybrid yn gyflym lle mae ein cydweithwyr bellach yn cael budd o ymarferoldeb TGCh llawn 

wrth weithio gartref – gan leihau costau teithio a’u hôl troed carbon drwy lai o gymudo a llai 

o filltiroedd busnes. 

 

Yn adlewyrchu barn staff o'u profiadau o weithio gartref yn ystod y pandemig, yn ogystal â 

mewn ymgynghoriad â’r undebau llafur, rydym wedi lansio polisi dulliau gweithio newydd a 

luniwyd i roi gwell cydbwysedd rhwng bywyd a gwaith i’n cydweithwyr a chynyddu 

hyblygrwydd a boddhad swydd, tra’n gwella cynhyrchiant a pherfformiad a sicrhau ein bod 

yn gallu cyflawni’n effeithiol fel sefydliad. 

 

Ym mis Ebrill 2022, cawsom gais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth am y manylion canlynol: 

Cynhwyswch yr wybodaeth ar gyfer pob un o'r cyfnodau canlynol: 2019-20, 2020-21, 

2021-22:  

 

• Dadansoddiad o unrhyw wariant ar brynu neu logi cerbydau, gan gynnwys faniau a cheir 

4x4. Nodwch wneuthuriad a model pob cerbyd, cost pob cerbyd, nifer y cerbydau a 

brynwyd, y dyddiad prynu a’r pwrpas. 

• Dadansoddiad o unrhyw wariant ar deithio, gan gynnwys treuliau cymeradwy, er 

enghraifft tocynnau trên, tocynnau tacsi, cerbydau hurio preifat, teithiau hedfan. Gwnewch 

Tudalen y pecyn 76

Eitem 6.1



 

 

2 

 

yn glir faint o docynnau neu unigolion a deithiodd ym mhob enghraifft, y cwmni a 

ddefnyddiwyd, a dosbarth pob tocyn. 

 

Mae’r ymateb llawn ar gael mewn taenlen a anfonwyd gyda’r papur briffio hwn, ond mae 

tabl o wariant treuliau staff isod: 

 

 
Sylwch nad yw CTM (system archebu Central Travel Management) yn cael ei defnyddio mwyach ar ôl mis Medi 2020 

GPC = cardiau credyd staff ar gyfer treuliau sy'n gysylltiedig â gwaith 

MyNRW = treuliau staff yn cael eu had-dalu drwy gyflog 

Amh = Amherthnasol 

Gwariant 

teithio  

 

2019/2020  

 

2020/2021  2021/2022 

Math o draul CTM GPC MyNRW CTM GPC MyNRW GPC MyNRW 

Trên (gan 

gynnwys bws) 364072 14209.39 13768.22 211.1 113.16 193.8 15780.59 6124.31 

Teithio 

domestig o 

fewn y DU 

(tacsi, fferi ac 

ati) Amh. 1764.11 0 Amh. 428.1 71.1 1417.91 578.5 

Teithio 

domestig y tu 

allan i’r DU 

(tacsi, fferi ac 

ati) Amh. 925.51 0 Amh. 0 0 175.19 0 

Hedfan 5892.99 75.21 123 0 0 0 543.09 0 

Car personol 

staff ar gyfer 

defnydd yn 

ymwneud â 

gwaith – petrol Amh. Amh. 78038.72 Amh. Amh. 38960.2 Amh. 101895.3 

Car personol 

staff ar gyfer 

defnydd yn 

ymwneud â 

gwaith – diesel Amh. Amh. 148162.8 Amh. Amh. 80216.99 Amh. 179382.3 

Beic Amh. Amh. 238.5 Amh. Amh. 125.54 Amh. 252.78 

Beic modur Amh. Amh. 183.12 Amh. Amh. 26.4 Amh. 218.64 

Cerbyd 

trydan/hybrid Amh. Amh. 186.3 Amh. Amh. 856.49 Amh. 1078.65 

Llogi tymor byr 

(y tu allan i 

gontract y 

Gwasanaeth 

Caffael 

Cenedlaethol) Amh. 4081.6 0 Amh. 0 0 1390 0 

Is-gyfanswm 369965 21055.82 240700.6 211.1 541.26 120450.5 19306.78 289530.5 

Cyfanswm 631721.42 121203.2 308837.28 

Tudalen y pecyn 77



 

 

3 

 

Gwybodaeth ar gael fel cyfansymiau lefel uwch yn unig 

 

Fe sylwch, ers y pandemig, ein bod wedi mwy na haneru ein gwariant staff. Yn 2021/22, 

yn seiliedig ar gyfrif pennau o 2,500 staff cyfwerth ag amser llawn, cyfanswm ein treuliau 

oedd £123.53 y pen.  

 

Nid ydym yn hunanfodlon yn hyn o beth, ac rydym wedi ymrwymo i gynyddu 

effeithlonrwydd tra’n lleihau carbon, ac rydym yn mynd ati’n gyson i archwilio sut y gallwn 

sicrhau’r gwerth gorau am arian ar gyfer y gwaith a wnawn. Mae ein rhaglen Adfywio hefyd 

yn edrych i wneud arbedion effeithlonrwydd yn ein hystâd adeiledig ac ar draws ein fflyd o 

ganlyniad i'n ffyrdd newydd o weithio. 

 

Data ar sychder 
 

Fel y gwyddoch, y llynedd gwelwyd un o’r cyfnodau sychaf yn y gwanwyn a’r haf a 

gofnodwyd erioed, a oedd yn cyfuno â thywydd poeth a dorrodd record tymheredd Cymru 

ym mis Gorffennaf 2022. Rhwng mis Mawrth a mis Awst, dim ond 56.7% o’i glawiad 

disgwyliedig a gafodd Cymru. Dyma'r trydydd cyfnod sychaf o chwe mis ers i gofnodion 

ddechrau yn 1865, gyda dim ond 1976 ac 1984 yn sychach. Daeth ein tîm sychder 

gweithredol CNC (Cymru gyfan) a thri thîm sychder gweithredol rhanbarthol ynghyd rhwng 

canol Gorffennaf a diwedd Tachwedd 2022. Daeth Grŵp Cyswllt Sychder Cymru (dan 

arweiniad Llywodraeth Cymru) ynghyd hefyd.  

 

Rydym yn cwblhau adolygiad o'n hymateb i'r sychder diweddar a gallwn anfon hwn atoch 

cyn gynted ag y bydd ar gael. Bydd unrhyw argymhellion a chamau gweithredu ar gyfer 

gwelliannau yn cael eu hystyried fel rhan o’n gwaith rheoli a chynllunio ar gyfer sychder yn 

y dyfodol. Ochr yn ochr ag aelodau eraill o Grŵp Cyswllt Sychder Cymru, rydym hefyd yn 

rhan o adolygiad ehangach Llywodraeth Cymru o ymateb aml-sefydliad, i lywio unrhyw 

ofynion polisi neu reoleiddiol ehangach.   

 

Yn ogystal, byddwn yn diweddaru canllawiau cynlluniau sychder cwmnïau dŵr ar gyfer y 

rownd nesaf o gynlluniau sychder yn ystod 2023 a byddwn yn ymgorffori unrhyw 

welliannau a nodwyd o'r profiad sychder diweddar. 

 

Mae'r gwaith hwn yn hanfodol i lywio ein paratoadau ar gyfer tywydd poeth, sychder a 

digwyddiadau tywydd eithafol eraill yn y dyfodol. Gwyddom o asesiad o beryglon hinsawdd 

yn y dyfodol y bydd llifogydd a sychder yn fwy cyffredin yn y dyfodol, fel y gwelir yn y 

Dystiolaeth ar gyfer trydydd Asesiad Risg Newid Hinsawdd y DU (CCRA3), ac mae'n rhaid 

i ni gyda'n gilydd wneud popeth o fewn ein gallu i helpu cymunedau i fod yn fwy cydnerth i 

effeithiau'r newidiadau hyn. 

 

Ar hyn o bryd, mae CNC yn cynnal asesiad sylfaenol ar draws y sefydliad o risgiau 

hinsawdd gan ddefnyddio sylfaen dystiolaeth CCRA3 i ddeall ehangder yr effeithiau posibl 

Tudalen y pecyn 78

https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-Wales-Summary-Final.pdf


 

 

4 

 

y bydd digwyddiadau yn y dyfodol, gan gynnwys sychder, yn eu cael ar draws ein holl 

gylch gwaith a gweithgareddau. Mae’r gwaith hwn i fod i ddod i ben ddiwedd 2023 er 

mwyn rhoi blaenoriaethau wedi’u diffinio’n dda inni o ran y camau addasu y mae’n rhaid 

inni eu cymryd. 

 

Diwygio mynediad – gan gynnwys mynediad at 

ddŵr 
Mae CNC wedi cael ei ariannu gan Lywodraeth Cymru dros y tair blynedd diwethaf i 

ddarparu adnoddau staff ychwanegol i gynghori ar ei Rhaglen Diwygio Mynediad a’i llywio. 

Rhoddodd CNC gyngor ar amrywiol gynigion sy’n effeithio ar dir mynediad agored o dan y 

Ddeddf Cefn Gwlad a Hawliau Tramwy, hawliau tramwy cyhoeddus, a hefyd gwybodaeth 

am fynediad a gwaith cynllunio. 

 

Yn ystod 2022/23, buom yn canolbwyntio ar ddarparu cyngor pellach ar y meysydd 

diwygio mynediad hynny na fyddai angen deddfwriaeth sylfaenol arnynt, yn enwedig mewn 

perthynas â hamdden cyfrifol (gan gynnwys gyda chŵn o amgylch da byw) a’r Cod Cefn 

Gwlad. Yn ogystal, rydym wedi ategu'r cyngor a ddarparwyd ym mlynyddoedd 1 a 2 y 

rhaglen.  

 

Mae mynediad at ddŵr bob amser wedi bod yn fater dadleuol. Cafodd Fforwm Mynediad 

Cenedlaethol Cymru y dasg o archwilio hyn ar wahân ac adroddodd ar ganlyniadau ei 

drafodaethau is-grŵp a chasgliadau ac argymhellion cysylltiedig erbyn mis Mawrth 2021. 

Yn dilyn etholiad y Senedd, ailgyhoeddwyd yr adroddiad i Lee Waters AS, y Dirprwy 

Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd, gan gadeirydd Fforwm Mynediad Cenedlaethol Cymru ym mis 

Gorffennaf 2021. Mae Rhaglen Lywodraethu Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwneud ymrwymiad i 

“Dechrau dynodi dyfroedd mewndirol Cymru ar gyfer hamdden, gan gryfhau gwaith 

monitro ansawdd dŵr”. Rydym wedi ymrwymo i gefnogi Llywodraeth Cymru i gyflawni'r 

uchelgais hwn. 

 

Yn ystod 2022-23, mae arweinydd prosiect CNC wedi canolbwyntio ar ymgysylltu â 

rhanddeiliaid i lywio nodau a dulliau gweithredu’r prosiect. Mae hyn yn cynnwys gwella 

dealltwriaeth o ganfyddiadau rhanddeiliaid o’r fframwaith presennol ar gyfer dynodi 

dyfroedd ymdrochi, rhwystrau i geisiadau, a phryderon perchnogion tir. Y nod yw nodi nifer 

fach o safleoedd ledled Cymru i gynnal tymor ymdrochi peilot yn 2023. Bydd y tymor 

ymdrochi peilot yn caniatáu i sefydliadau, gan gynnwys awdurdodau lleol, nad ydynt wedi 

cynnal tymor ymdrochi o'r blaen, weithio trwy ddarparu adnoddau a deall y dyletswyddau, 

a chaniatáu ar gyfer monitro ansawdd dŵr. Bydd y tymor peilot yn llywio argymhellion i 

ddiweddaru a gwella’r fframwaith ar gyfer rheoli dyfroedd ymdrochi, gan gynnwys nodi 

unrhyw ofynion i ddiwygio’r ddeddfwriaeth a’r canllawiau. Ar hyn o bryd, rydym yn trafod 

saith safle posibl ar gyfer y peilot, gan gynnwys nifer o gronfeydd dŵr, dyfroedd llonydd ac 

afonydd. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 79

https://naturalresources.wales/days-out/recreation-and-access-policy-advice-and-guidance/networks-and-partnerships/national-access-forum-for-wales/?lang=cy
https://naturalresources.wales/days-out/recreation-and-access-policy-advice-and-guidance/networks-and-partnerships/national-access-forum-for-wales/?lang=cy


 

 

5 

 

 

Cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth 
 

Ar hyn o bryd, yr unig gytundeb lefel gwasanaeth terfynol yw'r un ar y Rheoliadau Llygredd 

Amaethyddol. Rydym wedi rhannu’r llythyr gan y Gweinidog dros Faterion Gwledig, Lesley 

Griffiths AS, gyda chi, yn amlinellu’r ymrwymiad ariannu ar gyfer y ddwy flynedd nesaf. 

Wrth i'r cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth eraill gael eu cwblhau, rydym wedi ymrwymo i rannu 

gyda'r pwyllgor y rhai y cytunwyd arnynt gyda Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 

Ebrill 2023 

Tudalen y pecyn 80



 

 Sensitivity: general 

Mr Llyr Gruffydd MS 
Senedd 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 

03 May 2023 
 
Dear Mr Llyr Gruffydd MS, 

 

As Chair of the Senedd’s Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure Committee, I 

wanted to thank you for the opportunity to give evidence to the Committee last week. I hope 

myself and my colleague Huw Morgan were able to answer all of your questions and provide 

an insight into the opportunities and challenges facing both Tata Steel and the UK steel 

industry more widely.  

 

Further to our discussion, I have separately attached further information regarding 

international examples of Government support for steel decarbonisation. If there is anything 

you would like further clarity on, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

 

I wanted to follow up from the session by formally inviting the Committee to Tata Steel UK’s 

Port Talbot site. I have no doubt that this will build on the evidence you heard last week, and 

reaffirm the Committees views regarding how important the steel industry is to Wales, its local 

communities and its own journey to becoming Net Zero. 

 

We will also write to the Clerk of the committee regarding a visit and I look forward to 

welcoming you and your colleagues when diaries allow. 

 

Again, if there is anything else we can support with in the meantime, please do get in touch. 

 

Yours sincerely,  

 

 
 

Dr Martin Brunnock 

Director of Communications and Public Affairs  

 

martin.brunnock@tatasteeleurope.com  

Tudalen y pecyn 81

Eitem 6.2

mailto:martin.brunnock@tatasteeleurope.com


Sensitivity: general

Governments financially supporting steel companies’ decarbonisation projects 

Date 

announced

National 

Government
Steel 

company

Government 

contribution or 

commitment 

Decarbonisation 

project

Update on support

October 2022 Germany Salzgitter €1 billion grant Direction reduction (DRI), 

electric arc furnace (EAF) and 

electrolyser (1st of three phases)

Funding approved by the European Commission 

in October 2022 and received by Salzgitter from 

German govt in April 2023.

September 2022 Germany thyssenkrupp Extent of govt contribution to €2 

billion investment yet to be 

finalised

Hydrogen-powered direct 

reduction plants

State Aid approval from European Commission 

expected in ‘next few months’. Work began on 

the project in March 2023

June 2022 Spain ArcelorMittal €460 million (50% of costs) Hydrogen and electric arc 

furnace 

Funding approved by the European Commission 

in February 2023 

March 2022 Italy ArcelorMittal €150 million & favourable credit Hydrogen (TBC) No update. 

February 2022 France ArcelorMittal & 

potentially others

€1.7 billion (out of a possible €5 

billion) for Fos and Dunkirk sites

“Innovative technologies” such 

as hydrogen and carbon 

capture, usage and storage.

State funding for ArcelorMittal support still 

subject to EU approval 

November 2021 European Union SSAB, LKAB and 

Vattenfall

€143 million (additional) through 

Innovation Fund

Hydrogen Funding finalised by the European Commission 

in April 2022

November 2021 Canada (Quebec 

govt only)

ArcelorMittal CAD$80 million through 

electricity rebate

DRI No update.

September 2021 Belgium ArcelorMittal Extent of govt contribution to 

€1.1 billion investment yet to be 

finalised

DRI plant and two electric 

furnaces

State funding still subject to EU approval 

September 2021 Germany ArcelorMittal €55 million (50% of costs) Hydrogen Funding approved by the European Commission 

in February 2023 

July 2021 Canada (National 

govt and Ontario) 

ArcelorMittal CAD$900 million (50% of costs) DRI and EAF ArcelorMittal broke ground on the project in 

October 2022

May 2021 Germany Multiple €8 billion+ Large-scale hydrogen projects No update. 

T
udalen y pecyn 82



Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref: JJ/PO/116/2023 
 
 
Huw Irranca-Davies AS 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad 
 
Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
 
 
 

3 Mai 2023 
 
Annwyl Gadeiryddion, 
 
Yn unol â'r cytundeb rhyng-sefydliadol, gallaf adrodd wrth yr Aelodau imi fod yng nghyfarfod 
diweddaraf y Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd ar 23 Mawrth 2023, 
ac y prif bwnc trafododd oedd Gynllun Masnachu Allyriadau’r DU, a Chynllun Twf Sero Net 
y DU. 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod yr oedd Michael Matheson ASA, Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet 
dros Sero Net, Ynni a Thrafnidiaeth, Katrina Godfrey, Ysgrifennydd Parhaol yn Adran 
Amaethyddiaeth, yr Amgylchedd, a Materion Gwledig Gogledd Iwerddon, Graham Stuart 
MP, Gweinidog Gwladol Diogelwch Ynni a Sero Net, James Cartlidge AS, Ysgrifennydd 
Trysorlys i'r Trysorlys a'r Farwnes Vere, Is-ysgrifennydd Gwladol, Yr Adran Drafnidiaeth. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change  

Tudalen y pecyn 83

Eitem 6.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales

	Agenda
	2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	Papur - Y Gymdeithas Cludo ar y Ffyrdd (RHA) (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Sustrans Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)
	AQS 36 - Sustrans Cymru
	AQS36 Sustrans Cymru

	Sustrans Cymru_AQS_response 1 (for merging)

	Papur - Living Streets (Saesneg yn unig)
	AQS 14 Living Streets
	AQS 14 Living Streets

	AQS 14 - Living Streets


	3 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - sesiwn dystiolaeth 5
	AQS 09 The Institute of Acoustics (IOA)
	AQS 09 The Institute of Acoustics (IOA)

	AQS 09 - Institute of Acoustics

	4 Cynaliadwyedd Gwasanaethau Bysiau Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda gweithredwyr bysiau
	6.1 Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru
	6.2 Datgarboneiddio’r diwydiant dur yn ne Cymru
	Letter to Llyr Gruffydd, Chair of CCEI Committee, 3 May 2023.pdf
	Governments financially supporting steel decarbonisation plans - April 2023 update.pdf
	Slide 1


	6.3 Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd



